
APPROVED 
 

1 
 

Town of Grantham 

Grantham Conservation Commission 

 

MEETING MINUTES 

 

MARCH 21, 2016 

 

Chairman Richard Hocker called the Grantham Conservation Commission to order on Monday, 

March 21, 2016 at 7:07 p.m.  The meeting was held in the Jerry Whitney Memorial Conference 

Room at Grantham Town Hall located at 300 Route 10 South in Grantham, NH. 

 

Present:  Chairman Richard Hocker, David Wood, Susan Buchanan, Laura Nagy, Rich Kaszeta, 

Dennis Ryan 

Meeting minutes:  Nikki Arsenault  

Absent:  none 

 

Members of the Public:  John Larrabee 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE 

Approval of Minutes for the February 22, 2016 Meeting 

Chairman Hocker asked if there were any additions, corrections, or modifications to the draft 

minutes for the February 22, 2016 meeting.  The following clarifications and modifications were 

suggested: 

   

Nagy noted that under “Administrative” the word ‘an’ should be ‘any’.  On the second page 

under “Trail Activities” between ‘area’ and ‘where’ the location (Brookside Park) should be 

added.  Under “New Business” the following statement should be added to clarify the language 

regarding the statement about Selectman Brown: “It was reported that Selectman Brown 

questioned…”  Also, in the first paragraph on page four the sentence about Wood should be 

changed to “Wood recommended that the Commission’s efforts be put on hold.”   

 

Buchanan added that there should be a space added in “7:00 p.m.”   

 

A motion was made by Wood to approve the February 22, 2016 minutes; second by Kaszeta.  

There being no further discussion, the motion was put to a vote. 

 

Unanimously Approved & Accepted 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

No new business. 

 



APPROVED 
 

2 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 

 

Brookside Park  

Trail Activities – Wood noted that there are no new activities to report. 

 

Bridge Construction – Kaszeta updated the Commission that the concrete forms are basically 

complete.  Weather permitting, he will put them out and secure the anchor pins in place.  He will 

cover them with blue tarps until they are ready to pour concrete.  He noted that for the concrete 

pouring portion of the project he will need help; he is in the process of gathering a team of 

people with concrete pouring experience to assist.  Kaszeta has tentatively identified a gas 

powered concrete mixer that he hopes to use for the project.  He is hoping to have only one or 

two pours to complete the slabs.  April 16/17 and 23/24 are the tentative dates to begin work on 

the east bank.  He has located a rain barrel and used firehouse (donated by the Hartland VT 

VFD) for the concrete mixing project.   

 

The 10x10x5ft timbers for the sills have been more difficult to locate.  He will work with 

Bellettes in Andover to locate the timbers.  He will ask if they can cut the 16’ timbers down to 8’ 

timbers, or as a worst case scenario he will cut them to size with a chainsaw.  The biggest open 

item thus far is the rigging.  The Youth Conservation Committee said that they were not outfitted 

properly to complete the work (forklift needed).  Kaszeta is currently speaking with Field & Sons 

to see if they will be able to complete the work.  Wood question if the work could potentially be 

completed using two forklifts.  Kaszeta replied that while it could work, it would not be ideal. 

 

Kaszeta currently has the 4x4 boards.  He has also confirmed that we will have bridge access for 

the project.  Wood noted that it will be important to remove logs and other debris that is 

currently blocking the area.  Kaszeta noted that the water level will also have a considerable 

impact on the project.  The high water level this winter was at the base of the eastern form. 

 

Chairman Hocker added that with regard to the procurement of the beams – the current quote is 

with Melissa.  She will notify the Commission when the quote has been approved.   

 

Nagy noted that the crew will commute each day rather than require accommodations to stay on 

site.  The rigging will take approximately two days to complete.  Chairman Hocker asked 

Kaszeta if he was currently keeping a spreadsheet of costs and Kaszeta confirmed that he is 

keeping track of the costs in order to be certain that the Commission stays within the agreed 

parameters.   

 

Buchanan noted that it will be important to inform the public about the project.  She suggested 

signs at the Post Office or the Library in addition to the newsletter that is sent out.  Nagy noted 

that the Commission could have a ceremony of some sort in order to dedicate/name the bridge.  

Wood added that when a work day is planned it will be important to notify people that hands and 



APPROVED 
 

3 
 

expertise will be useful so that people who are willing and able to volunteer their time can be a 

part of the project.  This will also act as a way of notifying people of what is going on.  Wood 

added that he has a list of people who volunteer for woodlands projects who can be called upon 

for this purpose.   

 

Ryan noted that he attended the meeting to brainstorm ideas to celebrate the Grantham 250th 

anniversary and they encouraged the Commission to be a part of the celebration.  Ryan added 

that part of the marketing could be inviting people to hike to the bridge in honor of the 250th 

anniversary.  Chairman Hocker noted that there is a lot of history and it will be important to 

show how GCC is improving the forest.  After the bridge replacement and repair, Smith forest 

updates will hopefully begin by October.  At that point, the Commission can revisit the topic of 

trail map updates.     

 

Wood noted that he spoke to the renter who lives just south of the bridge and they did not have a 

problem with people passing through to work on the bridge.  Kaszeta called and left a message 

with the owners but has not heard back.  He noted that he will follow up again with the owners.   

 

Other Board Activities 

Bees and Blossoms – payment of invoices – Chairman Hocker announced that the monies 

provided by the Eastman Charitable Foundation will need to be put to a vote in order to be spent.  

This is due to the fact that the funds were received by the Town of Grantham’s Town 

Administrator, who designated the money for the Grantham Conservation Commission’s 

Easement Fund.  Therefore, the Bees and Blossoms group has five outstanding invoices (there 

may be another one or two in the pipeline) that will need to be approved by the Commission.  

Hocker added that the allocated amounts of $670 and most of the $250 will go toward the 

payment of these invoices.  Following a question proposed by Buchanan regarding the charges 

for the time at Grantham Village School, Wood clarified that the Garden Club donated $300 for 

this purpose.  The school is therefore paying $100 from this money and the $150 should be paid 

from the Eastman Charitable Foundation funds.  Hocker noted at this time that each individual 

invoice will require a letter stating that it was approved by the Commission and which portion of 

payment will come from either GCC or the Eastman Charitable Foundation funds.  Chairman 

Hocker and Wood detailed this information for the following invoices: 

 

Bee Hotels – Eastman Charitable Foundation 

Eco Studies – Eastman Charitable Foundation    

Kathy Neal – GCC contribution 

Sullivan County – GCC contribution 

 

Wood proposed that GCC authorize the spending of up to $670 of the funding provided by the 

Eastman Charitable Foundation to pay the aforementioned invoices.  Buchanan seconded this 

motion.   



APPROVED 
 

4 
 

 

Unanimously Approved & Accepted 

 

Review and comment on Open Spaces Protection Plan – Chairman Hocker received a request 

from Thain Allan, Chair of the Open Spaces Committee to provide him with input from GCC 

relative to the plan.  Hocker noted that he would give the Commission members a chance to look 

over the documents and comment on them.  He will then provide the group’s feedback to Allan 

by Thursday of this week.  Buchanan offered to provide a copy of the master plan to group 

members as needed.  The master plan was intentionally kept short to leave room for additions 

based on feedback they hope to receive.  She added that the next OSC meeting would be the 31st 

of this month.  Inventory sheets for this particular project are available in the Town Office.  

Buchanan will email examples of the inventory sheets and Craig’s file (map) to the GCC 

members.  Chairman Hocker noted that GCC is being given the opportunity to comment before it 

goes before the Selectmen.  He asked Buchanan if it would be possible to ask Thain and Craig at 

the next OSC meeting if they have charges against the money that GCC made available to them.  

If that money is not spent by June, it will likely revert back to the Town budget.   

 

Recruitment – Chairman Hocker announced that there is one vacancy on the Commission.  This 

position is a 3-year term.  Hocker provided a brief overview of the roles and responsibilities of 

the Conservation Commission and its relation to the Grantham Selectmen.  Chairman Hocker 

directed this information at John Larrabee, in attendance at the meeting, so that he may 

determine his level of interest in joining the Commission.  Hocker went on to add that the GCC 

is also responsible for managing and maintaining the health of the town forest.  The Commission 

fulfills its duties and responsibilities using the funds provided by the town budget and allocated 

tax monies.  One of the future goals of the GCC is to try to develop a bond fund.  Hocker noted 

that if John is interested in joining the Commission that Chairman Hocker would bring his name 

before the Selectman.  Buchanan asked that Larrabee introduce himself to the committee and he 

did so by providing an overview of his work with a variety of committees and groups, including 

the Fells, Lakes and Streams Grantham, Youth Conservation Corps, and also builds boats over 

the summer with middle school students.  Wood noted that Larrabee’s focus on youth, projects, 

and lakes and streams would be great assets to the Commission.    

 

Planning for Town trail map – Wood noted that GCC will need to wait until at least April 1st to 

proceed.  GCC will need to provide a small amount of funding in order to get information 

‘translated’ into Trail Finder.  This will be added to the agenda for next month’s meeting.  He 

added that photos and text can be added to the GPS coordinates of the trail maps; the system has 

enormous capabilities.   

 

Chairman Hocker provided flyers and information regarding upcoming events and legislation.  

These flyers and information will be scanned by the Secretary and distributed to the Commission 

members via email. 



APPROVED 
 

5 
 

 

Wood commented briefly regarding the town’s perambulation project.  The Selectmen have 

asked GCC to complete the local boundaries as part of its duties.  GCC completed over half of 

this project last year and there are two portions left to be completed – Mountain Road, Chase 

Pond, and the markers spaced along the Croydon Turnpike on the way to Plainfield.  Wood noted 

that the two selected dates for this project will be April 25 and May 2 to get the work completed 

and verify the markers’ presence.       

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Chairman Hocker asked if there was any further business.  There being none, Nagy moved to 

adjourn the meeting and Buchanan seconded the motion. 

 

The Commission voted unanimously to adjourn the meeting at 8:24 p.m. 

 

NEXT MEETING 

The next meeting of the Grantham Conservation Commission will be held at 7:00 p.m. in the 

Jerry Whitney Memorial Conference Room on Monday, April 18, 2016.   

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
Nikki Arsenault, Secretary 

 


